
 FINAL APPROVED MINUTES   

Acme Township Board of Trustees August 12, 2014 Page 1 of 4 
 

     ACME TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING 
ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

               6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 
            Tuesday, August 12, 2014, 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AT 7:01 P.M. 
 
  Members present: J. Aukerman, C. Dye, A. Jenema, G. LaPointe, P. Scott, D. White, J. Zollinger 
  Members excused: None 
  Staff present:  J. Jocks, Township Counsel 
                                       N. Edwardson, Recording Secretary 
   
A.  LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: 

C. Bergklint-Lahti, 8016 Windale Dr, read a prepared statement into record regarding her concerns with 
landscaping, weeds and other issues.  (Statement attached to minutes) 
 

               B. Kelley, Ridgecrest, expressed opinions on two meetings, citing when we hurry we tend to make more  
               mistakes.  He suggested a trial period of two meetings until the end of 2014. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  

    
Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Aukerman, to approve the agenda with the addition of New Business 
Item #6 Disposing of the old computers. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
  B. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None Noted 
 
  C. CONSENT CALENDAR: The purpose is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together for 

one Board motion (roll call vote) without discussion. A request to remove any item for discussion later in the 
agenda from any member of the Board, staff or public shall be granted. 

 
1. RECEIVE AND FILE: 

a. Treasurer’s Report as of 6/30/14 
b. UClerk’s Report  and Balance Sheet  
c. Draft Unapproved Meeting Minutes: 

a. Planning Commission 07/14/14 
b. Zoning Board of Appeals 07/23/14 

d.      Parks and Maintenance Report – Tom Henkel 
e.      Metro Fire Newsletter July 2014 
f.      Letter from MDNR on Public Shooting areas in GTC 
g.      Road Commission Resolution to support need for additional State Funding. 
h.      Letter from Planning Commission to DEQ on changes in oil, gas, and mineral 
           rules 

        2. ACTION – Consider approval:  
1. Township Board  Regular  07/01/14 and Special 07/22/14 meeting minutes 
2. Accounts Payable Prepaid of $11,953.43 and Current to be approved of  

$65,587.46  (Recommend approval: Cathy Dye, Clerk) 
 

Motion by LaPointe to approve the consent calendar with the following removed for discussion 
 07-22-14 Board minutes 
 Treasurer’s report 
 Clerk’s Revenue and Expense report 
 Letter from PC to DEQ Item 1 H 
 Clerk’s current bills to be approved  



 FINAL APPROVED MINUTES   

Acme Township Board of Trustees August 12, 2014 Page 2 of 4 
 

                          Seconded by Dye.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 
  

D. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR: 
Zollinger asked to have removed the Board minutes from 07-22-14. Additional written comments from a resident 
were  not included. 
 
Motion by White, seconded by Jenema to approve the 07-22-14 Board as presented with the additional 
written comments. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
Jenema requested the Treasurer’s report be pulled. Jenema wanted to make sure all Board members had the same 
report dated June 30, 2014. 
 
Motion by White, seconded by Scott, to approve the Treasurer’s report dated June 30, 2014.  Motion 
carried by unanimous vote. 
 
Dye requested the Revenue and Expense Report be pulled as she had made some corrections.   The new report 
was printed out at 5:10 pm this evening and Scott felt he as well as others did not have enough time to review the 
corrections. 
 
Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Jenema to table the “Revenue and Expense” report for additional review 
by the Board.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Ackerman requested Item H under “Receive and File”, Letter from Planning Commission to DEQ on changes in 
oil, gas and mineral rules be pulled. She expressed concerns about the 30 day extension and what the Board 
needed to do.  Zollinger stated that it was something the Planning Commission would handle. 
 
Motion by White, seconded by LaPointe, to approve the DEQ memo as presented.  Motion carried by 
unanimous vote. 
 
Dye asked for the “Current Invoices” to be removed.  She had five additional invoices to add on making the total 
to be paid $69,942.64 instead of $65,587.46. 
 
Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Dye, to approve the additional “Prepaid Invoices” of $4,355.18, making 
the total $69,942.64. Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 
 

E. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/DISCUSSIONS: None 
 
F. REPORTS:  

1. USheriff’s Report – Deputy: Ken Chubb - Received and filed 
2. Paul Soma TCAPS Interim Superintendent 

Soma gave a brief summary of the millage renewal on the November 2014 Ballot.  It is a request for the 
renewal of current millage which has been the same since 1999, .18 mills on non-homestead properties 
and .O on homesteads.  

             3.         County Commissioner’s Report – Larry Inman: Received and filed 
             Inman provided a letter to the Board explaining surgery to be done on August 22.  He is hoping if all goes  
                         well he will be back in attendance in four weeks. He will be available by phone. 
            4.          Road commission report- Bill Mouser-Received and filed 

 
G. CORRESPONDENCE: None 
H.         PUBLIC HEARING: None 
I. NEW BUSINESS: 
 1.     Agreement on Acme Township/Lautner Road Improvements 

        Zollinger stated that late today corrections were received on the recent Agreement with Lautner Road  
        Improvements that were voted on at the July meeting. 
 
 



 FINAL APPROVED MINUTES   

Acme Township Board of Trustees August 12, 2014 Page 3 of 4 
 

 
Motion by Jenema seconded by Scott to approve the amendments to the Agreement on 
Acme Township/Lautner Road improvements as presented.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
2.     Approval of Motorcycle Awareness Signs Resolution 
        Karen Robinson, East Bay Ambulance Manager, was present to tell the Board that after losing her son in 
        a motorcycle accident on 2012 she is using her energy to be part of motorcycle awareness and education. 
        Robinson is working on a project that would post road signs along the main roads informing motorists to 
        watch out for motorcycles. She is requesting the Board’s support for the project and approving the placement 
        of signs along the roads in Acme Township. 
 
Motion by Scott, seconded by Jenema, to approve Resolution R # 2014-27 as presented.  Motion carried by 
unanimous vote. 
 
3.       Metro Fire 2015 Annual Budget discussion – Pat Parker 

                       Before Parker began Zollinger referred to a memo in the packet. While working on our annual budget for 
                       Emergency Services Public hearing an error was noticed on our L-4029 Tax rate requested form filed with 

          Grand Traverse County Clerk and Equalization Department.  The error was that the Emergency Services 
          millage rate on the L-4029 showed 2.65 mills, but was only approved for 2.55 by the Acme Board. 
          Zollinger was embarrassed for the error and took full responsibility. Township legal counsel was advised of 
          the error. Counsel research the  matter and was unable to find any definite legal requirement when this sort 
          of mistake occurs.  Discussion on the options followed. 
 
Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Scott, to correct the Tax Rate request for Tax year 2013 error by 
reducing the 2014 improved millage rate for Metro Fire, when it’s  approved  by 1/10th of a mill.   
Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
         Parker stated that this was the time of year when the preliminary Metro Fire Budget is presented to the 
         Township Boards for comments. The public hearings and final approval by the townships will be in 
         September. Parker reviewed the budget. Discussion followed. 
 
Motion by Scott that the Township publish millage at 2.35 for Metro Fire, as what the Township recognizes 
as what is needed, Metro Fire is asking 2.25 with the township contributing $43,648 paid out of General 
Fund with a Public Hearing to be held. Seconded by White.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
4.       Recommendation on Purchase of BS&A software for Clerk’s office 
          Clerk Dye presented the Board with a proposal and report about BS&A software. She asked for a motion to  
          be made and seconded first, followed by discussion. 
 
Motion by Dye, seconded by Jenema to approve Resolution R # 2014-28 recommending approval to 
purchase the BSA software. 
 
          Dye read the Resolution which stated the current Fundbalance software being used is outdated and is not 
          being updated by the owner, Tyler Technology. The total bid amount for BS&A is $34,387.00. Dye 
          proposes that $15,000.00 be made available from Fund balance forward for year end 2013/2014 and the 
          remaining balance of $19,387.00 to be budgeted in 2015/2016.  Installation could take place as early as 
          May 2015 or after July 2015 as estimated.  Total payment in full required after installation and live running 
          with user acceptance by Clerk. With final payment not due until after July 2015.  LaPointe wants the 
          agreement for payment in writing.  Discussion followed. 
 
         B. Kelley, 4893 Ridge Crest, expressed his concerns with purchasing the BS&A software. He did contact 
         The Tyler software support number and spoke with Acme’s Township account representative, Mr.  
         Latosinski. He was unaware of Acme’s concerns about the support they are receiving and calls being 
         returned. Brian was concern about the cost of this new system when in his opinion we had not experienced 
         any service problems. Cathy stated the service problems she had related in her memo were a summary of the 
 



 FINAL APPROVED MINUTES   

Acme Township Board of Trustees August 12, 2014 Page 4 of 4 
 

        other Townships in our area. Supervisor Zollinger did state we experience issues with Fund balance during 
        during the cut over to our new server and computers and had to call many times to get the assistance  
        required.   
      
Motion amended to read after installation and customer acceptance payment is required and also payment 
agreement in writing .Motion carried by 5 (Aukerman, Dye, Jenema, White, Zollinger) in favor and 2  
(LaPointe, Scott) opposing. 
 
Recess from 09:55 pm-10:00 pm 
 
Meeting reconvened. 
 
Motion by LaPointe to drop under Old Business Item 3 Continued discussion on Ethics and Procedures 
until next month, Seconded by White. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
5.       Discussion regarding changing Acme Township Parks hours 
          Mark Guy, representing the Parks & Rec advisory was present regarding keeping Bayside Park open 24 
          hours a day on a trial bases until the snow returns.  Discussion followed.  Township counsel will revise and 
          rewrite the Parks closing ordinance for Bayside only.  Guy stated that we would revisit the issue to make 
          sure there were no negative factors that were caused by the Park being open 24 hours. 
          Zollinger stated that this is a police powered ordinance. 
 
Motion by LaPointe, to change the Parks Ordinance showing Bayside will be open 24 hours for Bayside 
only. Seconded by Jenema.  Motion carried by 4 (Aukerman, Dye, Jenema, LaPointe) in favor and 3 
(White, Scott, Zollinger) opposing. 
 

             Motion by LaPointe, seconded by White to remove Item 2 under Old Business “Discussion and Resolution 
             on possible two Board meetings per month.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
            

6.      Disposing of the old computers 
         Zollinger was seeking permission from the Board to dispose of the old computers. 
 
Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Jenema, to properly disposal of the old computers.  Motion carried by 
unanimous vote. 
 

J.          OLD BUSINESS: 
 1.      Hoxsie House update/Acme Heritage Society announcement on 7/31/14 
                      Zollinger read the recent notice in the Elk Rapids News stating that the Heritage Advisory will not be 
                      moving the Hoxsie House.  Zollinger is seeking approval to move forward on the demolition of the house. 
 
             Motion by Scott, seconded by LaPointe, to approve the moving forward of the demolition of the Hoxsie 
 House with cost not to excide the budget amount.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote.  
                

 
 PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD:  
 
            Adjourn at 10:30 p.m 











If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 
hours of the meeting at 938-1350. 

U      ACME TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

 6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

 Tuesday, August 12, 2014, 7:00 p.m. 
 

 

UGENERAL TOWNSHIP MEETING POLICIES 

A.       All cell phones shall be switched to silent mode or turned off. 

B.       Any person may make a video, audio or other record of this meeting. Standing equipment, 

             records, or portable microphones must be located so as not to block audience view. 

 

CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

ROLL CALL  

     

A.  LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Public Comment periods are provided at the beginning and end of each meeting agenda. Members of the public 

may address the Board regarding any subject of community interest during these periods. Comment during 

other portions of the agenda may or may not be entertained at the moderator’s discretion.  

 

 B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  

 

 C. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: 

 

 D. CONSENT CALENDAR: The purpose is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items 

together for one Board motion (roll call vote) without discussion. A request to remove any item for 

discussion later in the agenda from any member of the Board, staff or public shall be granted. 

 

1. RECEIVE AND FILE: 

a. Treasurer’s Report  

b. UClerk’s Report  and Balance Sheet  

c. Draft Unapproved Meeting Minutes: 

a. Planning Commission 07/14/14 

b. Zoning Board of Appeals 07/23/14 

d.      Parks and Maintenance Report – Tom Henkel 

e.      Metro Fire Newsletter July 2014 

f.      Letter from MDNR on Public Shooting areas in GTC 

g.      Road Commission Resolution to support need for additional State Funding. 

h.      Letter from Planning Commission to DEQ on changes in oil, gas, and mineral 

           rules 

        2. ACTION – Consider approval:  

a. Township Board  Regular  07/01/14 and Special 07/22/14 meeting minutes 

b. Accounts Payable Prepaid of $11,953.43 and Current to be approved of  

$65,587.46  (Recommend approval: Cathy Dye, Clerk) 

 

E. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 1.        

2.        

3.        

 

F. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/DISCUSSIONS: 

  

G. REPORTS: 

1. SSheriff’s Report June and July – Deputy: Ken Chubb 

2. Paul Soma TCAPS Interim Superintendent  

3. County Commissioner’s Report – Larry Inman: 

4.  Road commission report-Bill Mouser 



If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 
hours of the meeting at 938-1350. 

 

H. CORRESPONDENCE: 

               

I.          PUBLIC HEARING: None 

 

J. NEW BUSINESS: 

 

 1. Agreement Acme Township /Lautner Road Improvements 

 

             2. Approval of Motorcycle Awareness Signs Resolution 

 

 3. Metro Fire 2015 Annual budget discussion-Pat Parker 

 

 4. Recommendation on Purchase of BS&A for Clerks applications-Dye 

 

             5.          Discussion regarding changing hours in the Acme Township Parks Ordinance 

                 

K.      OLD BUSINESS: 

 

 1. Hoxsie House update/ Acme Heritage Society Elk Rapids announcement 7/31/14 

   

 2. Discussion and Resolution on possible two board meetings per month 

 

 3. Continue discussion on Ethics and Procedures-Dye  

              

              

 

 PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD:  

 

 

ADJOURN 

 

 





























































        DRAFT UNAPPROVED  
   

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 
hours of the meeting at 938-1350. 

                       ACME TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

 6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 
 July 14, 2014 7:00 pm. 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
ROLL CALL:    __X_Wentzloff ____X__Timmins  __X______Rosa ___X____Forgette ___X__ White 
____X___DeMarsh __excused______Feringa __X______Binkley  ____X_____Finch 
STAFF PRESENT:  Lennox, Iacoangeli, Jocks  
                               
A. LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: open 7:01 closed 7:02 

Public Comment periods are provided at the beginning and end of each meeting agenda. Members of the 
public may address the Board regarding any subject of community interest during these periods. 
Comment during other portions of the agenda may or may not be entertained at the moderator’s 
discretion.  
1. County Master Plan: John Sych, Planning Director – Gave copies of the Grand 

Traverse Co. Master Plan adopted at the end of last year, to the planning 
commissioners (only had 5 copies will get copies to Nikki to distribute) was thankful 
to all the communities that participated and gave input.  

       Complemented Acme's Master Plan- stating that it did a good job tying everything    
       together and that the county was using it as an example for other townships.  
       The Grand Traverse Co. master plan is all about collaboration with townships    
       within the county.  
                    
 B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Motion to approve agenda as presented  Finch  2nd. Timmins 
              Motion carries 
      
 C. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: none 
 
 D CONSENT CALENDAR: The purpose is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items 

together for one Board motion without discussion. A request to remove any item for discussion later in 
the agenda from any member of the Board, staff or public shall be granted. 

 
a) RECEIVE AND FILE: 

Draft Unapproved Minutes of: 
1. Township Board minutes: Regular 06/03/14 and Special meeting 6/12/14  
2. Zoning Board of Appeals 06/12/14 
3. Parks & Rec minutes 06/26/14 
4. Planning, Zoning & Administrative report: 

Motion to receive and file with the removal of Planning Commission minutes 6/9/14 and ZBA minutes 
from 6/23/14 
Motion By:   Timmins                   2nd: Rosa 
 Motion carries 
 
              b)       ACTION: 
             Draft Unapproved Minutes of: 
                                        1.         Planning Commission minutes:  06/09/2014 and 06/23/2014 
 
 
 

 



        DRAFT UNAPPROVED  
   

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 
hours of the meeting at 938-1350. 

E. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 1. PC comments 6/9/14 Wentzloff – grammar and spelling corrections   

2. Zoning board of appeals 6/12//14  Brian Kelley , minutes will be amended at next ZBA 
meeting, 
Motion to table ZBA minutes until amended  
Motion Finch    2nd.  Timmins 
Motion Carries  
Motion to approve PC minutes with corrections from 6/9/14 
Motion by White     2nd. By Finch 
Motion carries 
 

F. CORRESPONDENCE:  none 
 
G. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS: 
 
1.  Hughes, Site Plan Review Bates Rd B-4 new building 
 
Mark Hughes gave a brief over view of the plan for 6284 Bates Rd. Reported that approval from the 
Fire Dept. came in today (7/14/14) 
Rosa- questioned the benefit to have the Drive off the side street instead of Bates. 
Hughes- explains that he needs the curb cut in front. 
John I- Discussed Loading and unloading dimensions, work with adjoining piece of property to create a 
shared access agreement.- Mr. Hughes currently owns both parcels. 
 
Motion: Approve the site plan submitted by Howard A Hughes Trust for the construction of a  
9,600 square foot warehouse located on a 1.10 acre parcel on the southeast corner of  
Bates Road and East Railway Commons with the following stipulations:  
  
1) The approved site plan consists of Sheets 1 through 3 with a date to be written  
in the lower right corner under the sheet title (i.e. C1.1) by the Chairperson of  
the Planning Commission.  
(a) Sheet C1.1 – Site Plan  
(b) Sheet C1.2 – Septic and Drainage Plan  
(c) Sheet C1.3 – Lighting Plan  
2) The approved site plan package be signed by the Chairperson of the Planning  
Commission and the Applicant, or their representative.  
3) The Applicant will provide mutual reciprocal common drive easement that is acceptable to the 

Township Attorney.   
4) Signage, if any, shall meet the Acme Township Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Motion by Finch    2nd. By Forgette 
Motion carries 
  
2.  Application from Speedway for an SUP and request for public hearing, 5980 US 31 North 
Chris Schrank and Kerry Trombley give presentation  
Schrank- Began presentation stating that he understands that speedway started this project under the 
old ordinance and that the new form based code has been accepted.  Speedway is looking for a 
compromise between the two codes and would like feed back from the planning commissioners on 
changes they have made to the plan.   
Worked with Nikki and Jay to come up compromise over the last few weeks: added a 3'6” wall, tilted 
dispensers, added bike loops, extensive landscaping, tilted the dispensers, MDOT is very happy with 
how far away the new curb cuts are from the light. Everything was done to make it more pedestrian 



        DRAFT UNAPPROVED  
   

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 
hours of the meeting at 938-1350. 

friendly, added a sidewalk through the property, can add eating areas/picnic tables. This is going to be 
a new concept for Speedway, called speedy cafe with ready food to carry out. Trying to bridge old and 
new code.  
Received John I’s comments on Friday 7/11/14. 
Schrank explained that Speedway liked to have 24 parking spaces to encourage people to pull away 
from the pump to come in and pay so that cars aren't stacking up waiting for a pump.  Stated that the 
building has to be configured the way it is because by law the operators of the pumps (ie. Cashiers) 
have to have pumps in view at all times.   
  
Finch asked about LID storm water design. 
 
John I – recognizes that L-shaped gas stations are rare and it poses problems with configuration. 
              Some of his concerns with the tanks are floating due to where the tanks would sit in the 

watershed and the level of ground water, along with possible contamination if there were to 
ever be leaks in the tanks. 

 
John I – doesn’t want the planning commissioners to approve this part until reviewed by soil specialist 

and engineers.  The concern is not with the floating tanks but with contamination in the 
watershed.  Sited Meijer property having the same issue.  Believes the site can fit the Townships 
codes just not fit speedway protocol.  

 
Trombley -explains speedways anchoring process regardless of ground water levels. Comments that the 

tanks used are double lined fiber glass with monitors in between the layers to monitor for leaks. 
 
Timmins- doesn't like the store pushed back on the property want to see it pulled forward. Points out 

that the speedway on 4 mile has the cashiers facing away from the doors and the window they 
look out to see the pumps have obstacles blocking the view of the pumps.  Why can't the design 
of the purposed store change so it can fit within Acme's form based code and still provide the 
same type of side view of the pumps.   

   
Trombley- not familiar with the site of 4 mile,  
 
Timmins- would they not use the same spec's? 
 
Trombley- yes 
Timmins- Likes some of the site set ups that John I purposed with the store up front and the pumps 
behind, feels that the store being up front would be safer for pedestrians to get to. 
White-   this is our first trial with our form based code, feels they should be able to turn the building.  
Just redid the store on 4 mile didn't change the inside design.  Can they find a drier spot to put the 
tanks? Worried about the ground water, would like Speedway to check for a different spot to put the 
tanks. 
 
Trombley- will check other areas of the site on the north or south side. 
 
Binkley – first meeting, Driveway on 31 is dangerous, is there a reason we need a drive on 31? What is 
the history of double walled fiberglass tanks contaminating ground water. 
 
Trombley- fiberglass does not rust, so he is confident that because Speedway has gotten rid of steel 
tanks they because of rusting, those are the tanks that are known to leak not fiberglass 
Rosa- too many issues to approve anything tonight, shape of property seems to be an issue.  Is there a 
concrete tank on the outside of the fiberglass tank? 
 
Trombley explained the concrete is anchored to the tank to keep them from floating, the tank itself is 



        DRAFT UNAPPROVED  
   

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 
hours of the meeting at 938-1350. 

the double walled fiberglass. 
 
DeMarsh- Prior to receiving John I. comments on Friday can you tell the PC what design features were 
changed specifically to meet Acme's form based code? 
 
Schrank- didn't have landscaping, bike loops, how can we migrate both, brought canopy forward. 
 
DeMarsh-but wasn't that all post on Friday 
 
Schrank- yes 
 
Wentzloff- Clarifies what DeMarsh’s question was. 
 
Schrank- they didn't do anything prior to John I.'s comments on Friday to fit the new form based code 
 
DeMarsh- That was an error in judgment, form based code on a gateway position in the townships is 
significant and to move so far forward while ignoring the code is wrong. To bring us a drawing and 
plan that doesn’t acknowledge it is disingenuous. 
 
Schrank- talks about how they were working between two codes.  Had to go with the old code because 
of when they started.  Didn't know when form based code would be accepted. 
 
Discussion on when form-based code was passed. 
 
Wentzloff- it has been 2 months since the Township adopted form base code. 
 
Schrank- They were waiting on permits, as Nikki told them they had to have them in hand before 
applying.  
  
Forgette- feels strongly that Speedway ignored that the township was in the process of working on the 

code and they didn't do anything to even try to consider what the new code said. With out 
taking into consideration that the township was doing.  Went over dates of when they started 
their site-plan. Clarifies that Speedway was told about the changes in code when they brought 
in the first site-plan.  Not just your average convenience store, what better way to come in and 
see what the community wants and to walk within that.  

Finch- If you knew the old code was different than the new, wouldn't speedway hold up on planning? 
 
Schrank- they don't want to rehash, they just want to find a way to make this site work.  For the 

community and for Speedway.  Can't pull building forward it's just to constrictive on the L 
shaped site, wanted to know what they can do to make this a nice gateway corner. 

 
Wentzloff- been getting updates from John and Nikki, Nikki even made the deadline very clear as to 

when they had to have the application in to be considered under the old code. Feels they are  
trying to fit something very large on a site that can't fit it.  It's not the townships job to bend 
what we desire as a township to fit a model that a business desires. 

              It's a self-inflicted hardship, she likes the angled pumps, the wall, bike loops.  
 
Trombley- Likes all the feedback. Will take it back to the people at Speedway. Understands that the PC 

would like them to look at additional property to try to square the property off and make it 
work. 

 
Motion: That based on discussion and agreement with the applicant, the applicant will revise the 

drawings to reflect the comments of the planning commission, and return at a later date.                 



        DRAFT UNAPPROVED  
   

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 
hours of the meeting at 938-1350. 

Motion made by Rosa   2nd. By Timmins  
Motion carries 
 
 
3.  Parking Ordinance review-  Lennox- Commissioner Forgette requested it, would like it reviewed to 

understand how it applies to the B-4 district. 
       Forgette- it applies to all districts, look at the part that talks about ZBA giving exemptions. 
       Lennox- would like people to read and put it back on the agenda in September. 
        John Iacoangeli- will look at it and give feed back to the planning commission. 
 
I. OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Master Plan  
Comments by Brian Kelley – see attached 
  John I. Explained inconsistency with what people think and how to truly develop the shoreline 
 Wentzloff clarified peoples disconnect 
 White – explained that the area would have to be rezoned for trailer parks 
 DeMarsh- figure maps and page inconsistency with page numbers 
 Wentzloff doesn't like the pictures of the Bay would like to work with John to get better ones. 
 Timmins will turn in a few small corrections 

John I. would like to postpone until the next meeting when all changes are made, would like a 
resolution at the August meeting. 

 
J. COMMENT & OTHER PC BUSINESS  
 

1. PC Officer elections 
 
 Wentzloff nominated for Chairperson by Forgette 
             Wentzloff accepted  
  
Timmins yes  Finch yes     White yes    Binkley   yes    Rosa  yes      DeMarsh    yes   Forgette  yes 
Unanimous  
 
Vice Chair   
Feringa nominated first by Wentzloff          Feringa was excused due to Medical leave was not present 
to accept.  
DeMarsh nominated second by Timmins   DeMarsh accepted nomination  
 
vote on Feringa:  Timmins yes    Finch   yes    White yes     Binkley   yes    Rosa   no    DeMarsh  yes 
Forgette   yes      Wentzloff  yes 
 
vote on DeMarsh  
 
Timmins yes     Wentzloff   yes      Finch    yes      White    yes   Binkley    yes   Rosa     yes     Forgette   
yes  
 
Secretary  
Forgette nominated by Timmins   Forgette accepted nomination 
Timmins nominated by Forgette    Timmins accepted nomination  
 
Vote on Forgette    Timmins   yes   Wentzloff  yes   Finch   yes    White    yes   Binkley    yes  Rosa  yes  
DeMarsh  yes  
 Unanimous  no vote needed on Timmins 
 
 



        DRAFT UNAPPROVED  
   

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 
hours of the meeting at 938-1350. 

 
 

2.  Zoning Administrator update on projects: 
 
3.  Planning Consultant: 
 
4.   PC Business.: Marcie Timmins DEQ Fracking regulations- DEQ is considering changing 
regulations on oil and gas operations.  Timmins is attending a public comment forum would like to 
represent the planning commission as a whole. 

 
Motion to authorize Timmins to speak on the behalf of the planning commission at the DEQ forum  
Motion made by Forgette    2nd. By Finch 
Yes votes : Wentzloff , White ,Finch, Forgette, Rosa, Timmins, DeMarsh,   
No vote: Binkley 
 
Motion carries  
 
 
 
5.   Public Comment open: 9:11      closed 9:12 
 
Motion to adjourn by Timmins   2nd. By Finch 
 
 
 
ADJOURN:       



To: Acme Planning Commission
From: Brian Kelley
Subject: Master Plan Final Draft

July 14, 2014

I compared the previous draft version of the Master Plan with the "Final Draft Version" 
that was distributed at the July 2 Planning Commission Meeting.

There were few changes. Hardly any.

At the June 6 Planning Commission meeting, it was stated that changes would be made 
to reflect the lack of community support for major items that are advanced in the plan. 
Changes like Public Water, and high density housing. With the exception of one line 
about lack of support for a new town hall, those changes were not made.

It seems the statements that the changes would be made were hollow, with John I now 
stating that they are not appropriate for a planning document. The plan actively uses and 
cites the Community Survey where it suits the author's agenda, but not where it reflects 
the will of the people who reside in this community.

After nearly 30 years in the Fortune 500, I am unfamiliar with the notion that a Planning 
document should be one-sided and ignore the body that it is said to represent - the very 
people who paid for the creation of the document. In my experience, such a plan would 
be rejected, and sent back for revision.

The Plan is an important document. It will be used to justify spending, and major 
changes in our community.

For example, on pages 70 and 71 it describes how nearly all of of the residential district 
South of Bunker Hill will be "Urban residential", suitable for high density multi-family 
development, and affordable housing projects. The Plan pushes the objective of 
"encouraging development of high-density residential living", and has "primary uses" of 
high density" apartment buildings, manufactured homes, and mobile home parks".

The planning commission recently increased the maximum density of housing in certain 
parts of Acme from 3 units per acre to 18 units per acre. The Plan now lays the 
groundwork to expand that virtually anywhere in our residential community. Subsidized 
government housing projects could soon follow. Once initiated, they can be impossible 
to stop. Many communities have found themselves in that situation. Our Plan, and our 
ordinances, have few if any protections against such bad development. In fact, this broad 
"Urban Residential" designation invites it. It happens over and over in other 



communities who have not planned well.

We are not Ann Arbor. We are not Ypsilanti. We are not desperate to attract 
development.  We value our Rural Character, remember?

In those and other respects this is a Plan for a different community. This is a Plan that 
pushes the virtues of building trailer parks and high density housing up on Bunker Hill. 
Apparently that is seen by some as an important area of growth for our community, 
regardless of the community opposition.

The planning commission has thus far refused to acknowledge that the community 
opposes this. They have said almost nothing about these concerns. No justification. No 
response. Is that Citizen Driven?

Who could have ever imagined that when they built a house in that area that major 
portions would be declared "urban"?

The PC and Board will not always be in control of those changes. Once the groundwork 
is laid, as it is so carefully being done, the Zoning Board, or courts, can allow projects to 
move forward regardless of the wishes of the board, community, or PC.  The Master 
Plan is the foundation for those changes.

At the first PC meeting I attended, the Chair made the statement "No one comes, no one 
cares" in regard to the town hall being nearly empty of members of the public, and no 
one rising to speak during public comment. Just because the PC meetings are primarily 
attended by Developers with a specific agenda does not mean the community does not 
care, nor that their sentiment can be ignored.

This is just one example of how the master plan ignores the community, and ignores our 
desire that our elected Acme government protect our Rural Character.

Requests to have the Plan at least acknowledge the community sentiment, as expressed 
in the survey and from simply talking to community members, have been quietly 
ignored.

That does not sound like Citizen Driven. It sounds like Citizens Overridden.

Thank you,

  Brian Kelley



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED 

Acme Township Zoning Board of Appeals July 23, 2014 Page 1 of 1 
 

ACME TOWNSHIP 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

July 23, 2014 
Wednesday 7:00p.m. 
Acme Township Hall 

Acme, Michigan 
 

Meeting called to Order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
Members present: J. Kuncaitis (Chair),   L. LaSusa, T. Forgette, L. Belcher 
Members excused: J. Maitland 
Staff present:  N. Lennox; Zoning Administrator, Recording Secretary  

 
1. Review and approval of the agenda, inquiry as to conflicts of interest: None 

 
2.   Correspondence:  None 
   
2. Hearings:  2013-07Z Variance request for 4528 Five Mile Rd 

Belcher reads notice in Record Eagle. 
Applicant Pamela and Roger Smith, 4528 Five Mile Rd. Applicant explains that 
their home is non-conforming on their property.  They wish to add a second story 
above their home and existing front porch and add a 3 car attached garage which 
will be conforming. The 2nd story addition will attach to an existing nonconforming 
second story and attach to the second story over the new garage. 
 

Public Comment Opened 7:16 p.m.: None, Closed: 7:17 p.m. 
  

Motion by L. Belcher to allow an increase in nonconformity upwards, not 
outwards. Meets nonconforming conditions A and possibly B. 
(Sec.15.5, and Sec. 5.4.1 and 2, supported by LaSusa.   
Motion carries unanimously. 
 

4.    Approval of minutes from the June 12, 2014, meeting, Lennox discusses 
clarification of minutes to amend.   

 Motion by LaSusa to approve amended minutes 
 Comment by Brian Kelley to add his comments from that meeting. 
 Kuncaitis; Comments are regarding the Ann Arbor (TSC) store. 
            

Motion by LaSusa to add Brian Kelley’s comments “retroactively” to the 
June 12 minutes, supported by L. Belcher to approve the minutes of the 
June 12, 2014 with amendments and comments.  Motion carries 
unanimously.  
 
Board discussion regarding tracking of variances.  
 

  Motion to Adjourn by LaSusa, second by Forgette. Motion carries. 
ADJOURNED AT 7:45 pm 



 
 
 
 

To: Acme Township Board of Trustees 
 
From: Tom Henkel, Facilities & Parks Manager 
 
Date: 8/4/2014  
 
Re: Monthly Update 
 

 
The Following is a summary of key activities underway. 
 

Parks: 
Summer seems to be going fine. No major issues I am aware of. 
The emergency gate at marina has been closed and all is well now. 
Have had reports of vehicles jumping the curbs and going out on the lawns 
along the Shoreline Parks at Bayside the vehicles have been well behaved 
thus far. 
The two swimming beaches have been groomed every week starting July 
1. And will continue until the end of the season. This is double what we did 
last year. 
Mowing is on a two week rotation. 
Wood chips have been freshened around Sayler Park playground. 
Night lights at Sayler Park bath house have been put on a timer instead of 
photo cells. It’s so dim around there due to tree canopy, the lights were on 
to much of the time during the day. 
Wood chip paths will be freshened on all trails as soon as time allows. 
Trees along the parks side of Shores Beach road have been cut back, 
stump grinding to follow. 
Pruning and mowing continues in beach areas as time allows. 
Water has come up a foot which make the sand wet and tough to groom. 
But the swim area beaches are decent as I can make them, given the 
changes along the shore. 



Attended the Water Safety Network Meeting. We will be receiving 2 Water 
Safety Stations. 1 for each swimming beach. Life ring, Life rope and 
signage. Free of charge. 
Attended Park Advisory board Meeting.     
 
 
Cemeteries: 
The fence is in the process of installation at Yuba Cemetery should be 
complete shortly. 
In the process of replacing the pump pit cover at Acme Cemetery. 
Grave spoils at Acme Cemetery will be hauled away as soon as time 
allows. 
The next fence install will be at Acme Cemetery N.E. back side. When time 
allows. 
Mowing is in a two week rotation this time of year.  
 
Buildings/Grounds: 
Nothing to report. 
 
 
Equipment/Fixtures: 
Working on replacement park equipment when time and weather allow. 
 
Surface Water Quality Testing: 
Completed for July. 
 
Beach Water Quality Testing: 
So far this year only 2 Level 2 Advisories were issued 1 at Sayler and 1 at 
Bayside. Rain and wind storms could be the culprits. 
Attended Stake holders Meeting.  
 
Invasive Species: 
Phragmites Program is in process for North of Dock Road this Year. 
Attended Phragmites meeting. 
Japanese Knotweed has be treated at Bayside Park under a Grant.      
 
 
Planning: 
Worked on trail planning at Park Advisory Meeting. 
Waiting on grants. 



 
General Activities: 
Whittling on my lists of to do’s for this season.  
 
The end 
Thanks,   
 































  DRAFT UNAPPROVED  

Acme Township Board of Trustees July 01, 2014 Page 1 of 5 
 

     ACME TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

 6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

 Tuesday, July 1, 2014, 7:00 p.m. 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AT 7:01 P.M. 

 

  Members present: J. Aukerman, C. Dye, A. Jenema, G. LaPointe, P. Scott, D. White, J. Zollinger 

  Members excused: None 

  Staff present:  J. Jocks, Township Counsel 

                                       N. Edwardson, Recording Secretary 

   

A.  LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: None 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  

    

               Motion by White, seconded by Jenema, to approve the agenda with the addition of the Ethics and 

               procedures under Old Business # 4, Motion carried by unanimous  roll call vote. 

 

 B. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None Noted 

 

 C. CONSENT CALENDAR: The purpose is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together for 

one Board motion (roll call vote) without discussion. A request to remove any item for discussion later in the 

agenda from any member of the Board, staff or public shall be granted. 

 

1. RECEIVE AND FILE: 

1. Treasurer’s Report  

2. UClerk’s Report  and Balance Sheet  

3. Draft Unapproved Meeting Minutes: 

a. Planning Commission 06/09/14 

b. Zoning Board of Appeals 06/12/14 

4.          Parks and Maintenance Report - Henkel 

            5.         Planning & Zoning Report – Lennox 

           6.         Memo from The Watershed Center dated 6/16/14 re Bayside Park E. Coli 

                       Investigation results 

              2. ACTION – Consider approval:  

1. Township Board  Special meeting minutes of 06/12/14 and Regular 06/03/14 

2. Accounts Payable Prepaid of $2,700.78 and Current to be approved of $43,949.84 

(Recommend approval: Cathy Dye, Clerk) 

 

Scott asked for the special meeting minutes of 6/12/14 to be removed, Jenema the Parks & Recreation Report and 

the Watershed Investigation results, Aukerman asked for the 6/3/14 Board meeting to be removed, and from the 

public a request for the ZBA minutes from 6/12/14. 

 

Motion by Jenema, seconded by Scott to approve the consent calendar with the following removed for 

discussion 

 6/3/14 and 6/12/14 Board meeting minutes 

 Parks & Maintenance Report 

 Watershed Center investigation results 

 6/12/14 ZBA minutes 

             Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED  

Acme Township Board of Trustees July 01, 2014 Page 2 of 5 
 

D. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Scott stated in the 6/12/14 meeting under New Business Item 2 “Potential Funds Allocations for Township fund 

balances”.  He did not think the motion was clear as to what the amount of monies that went into the SAD 

districts and Acme water engineering project. Scott also commented that it was stated at the 6/12/14 meeting a  

question was asked on why he was not present and Scott referred to an email that was sent prior to the meeting 

stating that he would be working and unable to attend.  He wanted it to be made clear that he was working. 

 

Motion by Scott, seconded by Jenema to table the 6/12/14 minutes so that the minutes can be corrected and 

presented at the August meeting for approval.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

Jenema referred to the Parks & Maintenance memo dated 6/24/14.  She asked if Henkel had a schedule for beach 

grooming.  In his memo he states that the areas have been prepped for grooming.  Jenema would hope that this 

could be done with the 4th of July coming up. Discussion. 

 

Motion by Jenema, seconded by Dye to approve the Parks & Maintenance report as presented. Motion 

carried by unanimous vote. 

 

Jenema questioned what the Bayside Park E.coli investigation actually found. She was rather disappointed in the 

report. Jenema did not find any suggestions for improvement. 

 

Motion by Dye, seconded by LaPointe to approve the Watershed Bayside Park e-coli investigation results 

as presented. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

Aukerman questioned the 6/3/14 minutes under Public Hearings Item #4 Resolution # R-2014-18. Motion by 

Scott did not reflect  if one is being compensated from another  entity, such as Fire Board, a trustee would not also 

get paid by the Township. 

 

Motion by Scott, seconded by White, to approve the 6/3/14 minutes with the correction to Item # 4 under 

Public Hearings. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

             B. Kelley, asked for the ZBA minutes of 6/12/14 to be removed.  He had a few corrections.  Zollinger stated that 

             ZBA first had to review them.  Minutes were tabled for now. 

 

             Motion by Scott, seconded by Aukerman to table the ZBA 6/12/14 minutes until approval from the ZBA 

             first. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

E SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/DISCUSSIONS: None 

  

F. REPORTS: Received and filed 

1. USheriff’s Report – Deputy: Ken Chubb  

C.Walter, Bates Road, asked for the “Speeding Trailer” to be set up on Bates Road as “Horses by the 

Bay” is in full operation. 

2. County Commissioner’s Report – Larry Inman: 

3.  Road commission report-Bill Mouser 

             Zollinger stated that the recent repairs on Hawley Road were around $70,000.00 and Angell Road  

             $20,000.00. 

        

G. CORRESPONDENCE: None 

             

H.          PUBLIC HEARING: None 

  

I. NEW BUSINESS: 

 1.        Appointments to Planning Commission and Advisories 

                        Zollinger prepared a memo of his recommendations for the Planning Commission and advisories. 

                        Wentzloff and Feringa are reappointments and will serve to 2017.  Max Binkley is the new appointment 

 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED  

Acme Township Board of Trustees July 01, 2014 Page 3 of 5 
 

                          replacing Bob Carstens, and he also will serve until 2017.  Jim Maitland will serve out the term of Bob 

                          Hopkins, who passed away in January of 2014.  Maitland’s ZBA appointment  will expire in 2015. 

                        

                        Motion by Jenema, seconded by Aukerman, to approve the recommendations as presented. 

                        Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

             2.        Presentation of Sewer Review – Clyde Johnson/Gosling Czubak 

           Clyde Johnson, Gosling Czbuk, reviewed the Master Sanitary Sewer Study Phase I. Johnson stated there  

           are two components to evaluating a sanitary sewer system; the first is examining the infrastructure and 

                        determining capacities of the pipes and pump stations. The second is examining the usage distribution 

                        and placing usage in the appropriate position on the appropropriate line. Zollinger wanted the Board to 

                        be aware of the current situation as this is the first time we have looked into this issue. Discussion 

                        followed. 

                           

 3.        Blue Water Trail Resolution/ Signs 

                        Timmons Chair of the Parks & Rec advisory was present to address any issues or concerns. She said the 

                        following locations in Acme Township will be supported by the Blue Water Trail, Bunkerhill Rd at U.S. 

                        31, Bayside Park, Sayler Park  Boat Launch. The trail will be open to the public use for a minimum of 10 

                        consecutive years, access points must be open to the public use, designed, constructed and maintain 

                        according to the best management practices and the trail is in compliance with land use plans and 

                        environmental issues. 

                        Timmons also talked about signage for the trails.  We do not have to implement tonight. Timmons will be 

                        meeting with the conservancy in August with Jennifer Jay for a full review of what is available.  There are 

                        small signs stating “Entrance” or “Exit” that range in price from $100-$150. Timmons said that the Parks  

                        & Rec advisory have monies in the Sayler Park Boat Launch fund for signs and will be using those monies  

                        to begin with. 

 

                        Motion by Scott, seconded by Jenema, to approve Resolution # R-2014-23 showing support of the 

                        Blue Water Trail – Chain of Lakes Water Trail. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

             4.        Approval of Horse Sports Park Special Use Permit 3014-07 

            Lennox, Township Zoning Adminstrator, was present to review the Horse Sports Special Use Permit. 

                        The request by Special use permit would allow for weddings, birthday parties and other similar events. 

                        The Planning Commission recommended approval with eight conditions. 

 Signage shall meet all of the requirements of the sign provisions, with variance 

 Applicant may hold not more than 12 events for which applicant receives any form of 

compensation per calendar year 

 Any function will cease operation by 11:30 p.m. If music is involved during the event the music 

will cease by 10:30 p.m. 

 Food preparation will be done off-site or in Flint fields commercial kitchen 

 Tents, chairs, tables and portable toilets shall be removed no later than the following business day 

 Power generators can be used, but the site plan should note where generator cannot be located 

based on a radius of 750” from adjacent homes. 

 The township Zoning Administrator shall be notified at least two weeks in advance when an event 

will take place and confirm receipt of the notification back to Ms. Karin Flint, or any future 

property owner. 

 Code related issues addressed by the Grand Traverse County Construction Code Department and 

MESA shall be satisfied prior to holding any event under this permit 

 

                         Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Scott, to approve Special Use Permit 2014-07 with eight 

                         conditions (listed above) and one modification to condition number three that music/voice amplifer 

                         sound system stops at 10:30 pm.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

             5.        Consumers Power Upgrade Project Fall of 2014 in Acme Township 

                         Zollinger reviewed a Consumers Power Upgrade project slated for the Fall of 2014.  This will be a line up 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED  

Acme Township Board of Trustees July 01, 2014 Page 4 of 5 
 

                         grade by Consumers: Project Boardman to Acme HVD line.  Work will follow existing line and require 

                         some pole replacements with spans of about 350 feet.  A public meeting will be held for those affected. 

 

             6.         Noxious weeds and unkept lawns/tall grass 

             LaPointe had raised concerns about unkept lawns/tall grass in some commercial areas in the township. 

                         He has discussed it with Lennox, Zoning Administrator and she will draft an ordinance.  LaPointe would 

                         like the Acme Business Association to review it and then back to the Board for review. 

                          

             7.         Farmland Open Space Preservation 2014 Ballot language 

             McDonough, Bourdages from the Grand Traverse Regional Land conservancy and Acme Township  

                         resident, John Zaloudek, were present to support the approval and resolution of the ballot language for the 

                         Farmland and Open Space preservation millage renewal in the November general election. Zaloudek will 

                         advocate with Acme electorate to vote “yes” on the ballot question. The proposal is  to levy a property tax 

                         of up to 0.73 mills that would cost the owner of a home with a taxable value of $100, 000.00, $73.00 per 

                        . year. 

                         White reclused himself from voting as he has property in the next round of applications. 

 

                         Motion by Jenema, seconded by Aukerman, to approve Resolution # R-2014-24, adopting the 

                         Millage ballot language for the purchases of Farmland and Open Space Development rights. 

                         Motion carried by a roll call vote of 6 in favor (Aukerman, Dye, Jenema, LaPointe, Scott, Zollinger) 

                         and 1 abstaining (White) 

                          

J.      OLD BUSINESS: 

           1.        Status of possible New Township Community center/firehouse 
                      Ken Crawford, Acme Township resident and a member of the Acme study team looking into a new 

                      Township Hall/Community center/Firehouse read the draft progress report dated June 18, 2014. The 

                      Study team is requesting that the Board agree to allow the team to further investigate and return with 

                      possible options and finance models for Board consideration. Trustee, Scott, also felt it important to look 

                      into what could be done and the cost to the current building after the fire station has moved on.  

 

                       Motion by White, seconded by Scott to approve further studies regarding  a new township hall/ 

                       Community center and firehouse.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

            2.       Discussion on Board meeting frequency 

          Zollinger stated that there has been discussion about having two meetings; one could take care of the 

                      business of running the township; paying bills, approving minutes, resolutions, etc. and the second 

                      meeting could be study sessions.  Scott stated he had major concerns with having two meetings.  His first 

                      question was “What have we missed doing or paying?” Dye commented that we have not missed paying  

                      anything but what we have missed is study sessions. Study sessions where time is not an issue and 

                      there is time for thoughtful deliberation.  LaPointe stated he would prefer two monthly meetings lasting two 

                      hours or less.  Discussion followed. 

                       

                      T. Phillips, 2986 Wild Juniper Trails, commented that he was one that wanted to see two meetings thinking 

                      it would help Scott out. 

 

                      Motion by Scott, seconded by White, to  maintain the monthly meeting schedule as is, one a month. 

                      Motion failed by a roll call vote of 2 in favor (Scott, White) and 5 opposed (Aukerman, Dye, Jenema, 

                      LaPointe, Zollinger) 

 

                      Additional discussion followed.  Jocks stated that a resolution would have to be drawn up stating the change 

                      in meeting schedules.   No changes until the resolution is approved. 

 

                      Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Dye,  for staff to  draft up a resolution for a potential second 

                      meeting to  be discussed and voted on at the next meeting.  Motion carried by a roll call vote of 5 in 

                      favor (Aukerman, Dye, Jenema, LaPointe, Zollinger) and 2 opposing (Scott, White) 

 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED  

Acme Township Board of Trustees July 01, 2014 Page 5 of 5 
 

                     

            3.       Discussion on video taping of Board meetings 

                      B. Kelley, a township resident volunteered to gather information on various ways and cost to video tape  

                      Board/PC meetings.  He will present at a later date. 

 

            4.       Ethics and Procedures 

                      Dye recently sent out a email with some procedures for conducting a meeting.  She is looking for input from 

                      the Board and then having a study session.  

                      Scott suggested a motion to have a special meeting to approve current bills and also a work session on 

                      ethics and procedures.   Discussion followed. 

   

        P. Runhaug, expressed displeasure with Zollinger, not being “fair minded” about setting a date for a second 

                      meeting. 

 

                      Motion by Scott, seconded by Dye to set a date for an additional July meeting.  Motion carried by a 

                      roll call vote  of 5 in favor (Aukerman, Dye, Jenema, LaPointe, Scott) and 2 opposing (White, 

                      Zollinger) 

                       

                      Following additional discussion a date of Tuesday, July 22, at 6:30, for a special Board meeting was set. 

                      The two items on the agenda will be checks to be approved and work session on ethics procedures.  

 

 PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD: None 

           

 

            Adjourn at 10:35 p.m 











































Administrator/Controller Report 
July 2014 

 
 

Strategic Goals 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Boardman River Dams Project (8) 

 The Boardman and Sabin Dam Removals proposal has been awarded $100,000 from 
the Great Lakes Basin Fish Habitat Partnership through the Federal Fish and Wildlife 
Service.  

 The US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) will be issuing the Detailed Project Review 
and Environmental Assessment in early July, and they plan to hold a Public Information 
Session on August 7, 2014 from 5:00 pm to 8:00 pm at the Civic Center. 
 

Administration (1, 2)  
 Copier Bid:  Working on cooperative bid with City of Traverse City and County 

departments.  Expect issuance in June. 
 

 Part-time Temporary Staff: Working to fill part-time temporary position. 
 
Central Dispatch/911 (7) 

 Staffing: Two part-time temporary positions have been hired to assist with staffing 
shortages.  There are two full-time regular dispatchers also in training, and we are 
working with some additional applicants with experience who are relocating to our area.   

 
The Director met with Veterans Affairs to discuss ways we might bring veterans in as 
possible dispatch candidates.  One of the things he suggested involves a job website for 
veterans and we will be taking advantage of that option. 

 
 Funding:  Funding issues continue with the caps placed by the MPSC, and we now know 

what the surcharge revenue and grant funding will cover approximately 59% of the 911 
budget.  The remaining 41% will come from General Fund.  This is for operations only 
and does not fund any capital needs.  Many of the capital requests have been pending 
for some time and now that our funding status is no longer in flux it is appropriate for 
long-term funding options to be considered.  Information on those options will be 
provided to the BOC next month. 
 

Commission on Aging (3, 4, 7)    
 Senior Center Renovation Project:  The renovation architect has presented three 

possible design options for the Friends Committee to review.  Once a design has been 

1. Maintain financial strength and stability 
2. Strengthen and expand the County’s use of technology 
3. Address infrastructure needs 
4. Continue community engagement and access to information 
5. Ensure that County is viewed as a fair and equitable employer 
6. Expand the capabilities of the Board of Commissioners 
7. Advance the health and quality of life of the region 
8. Protect and preserve County’s water resources, forests, natural areas and scenic beauty 

 



2 
 

selected, it will first go to the Commission on Aging board, and then to the County Board 
of Commissioners and the City Commission for final approval.  The goal is to begin fund-
raising in the fall of 2014. (3) 

 
 Wait List Reduction:  The Commission on Aging board has been working for three 

months to identify ways to reduce our Home Chore (yard maintenance and snow 
removal) wait list.  A plan was approved at the Commission on Aging June Board 
meeting, and the plan details approved at their Program Committee meeting June 17, 
2014.  Using fund balance, the Commission on Aging is recommending the following 
plan for 2014 (if approved by the BOC/County Administrator/Controller): 1.) Increase 
staff hours from 37.5 to 40 as needed; 2.) Add 1 seasonal employee; 3.) Distribute 
vouchers to be used to “purchase” services from the private sector. In year 2015, the 
plan will be expanded as follows: 1.) Add 0.5 seasonal worker, and 2.) Distribute 
additional vouchers.  The seasonal employee services and the voucher services will be 
tracked and compared to determine which is more cost effective and which is preferred 
by our clients.  The plan will be presented to the BOC in July. (7) 
 

 State Advisory Council on Aging:  The 2015 state budget calls for increased funding for 
in-home services, including Meals on Wheels, in an effort to make Michigan a No-Wait 
State. (7)         

 
Finance (1)    

 During the month we continued to address various review questions or issues that were 
raised by Rehmann regarding the audit of our financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2013.  These issues generally occur as the result of the detail and partner 
reviews of our financial statements by the auditors.  We filed the audited financial 
statements with the state by June 30, 2014 as required.  The F-65 - Annual Local Unit 
Fiscal Report was also submitted to the Michigan Department of Treasury. 
 

 Munson Healthcare continues to evaluate a potential financing through the County 
Hospital Finance Authority.  If the financing involves a project that is outside of Grand 
Traverse County, which is under consideration, it may be necessary to amend the by-
laws of the County Hospital Finance Authority in order to do this. 

 
 The East Bay Township water improvement project continues to move forward.  The 

township recently purchased some land for the proposed water improvements and they 
anticipate construction to start later this year. 

 
GIS (4) 

 Grand Traverse County GIS was one of 175 agencies recognized by ESRI from over 
100,000 nominations for its Special Achievement in GIS (SAG) award at the 2014 ESRI 
International User Conference.  This award is given to user sites around the world to 
recognize outstanding work with GIS technology. 
 

 The 2014 parcel layer is complete.  Data was distributed to assessors on June 
19th.  This is the earliest date that this process has ever been completed. 
 

 As specified in the 2014 contracts with local units for tax map preparation, tax maps 
were distributed to the local assessors on June 19th, which is the earliest date that this 
process has ever been completed. 
 



3 
 

 In collaboration with Road Commission, the department created and accurately 
populated private/public attributes in the GIS road center line layer.  While this 
information is useful to the public (realtors, property owners, etc.) for 
ownership responsibilities, road dedication is an important piece of information for the 
police to have when arbitrating road maintenance disputes.  The information will soon be 
available to responding officers through the 911 central dispatch center.  The process 
was also automated, thereby eliminating duplicate maintenance efforts and the potential 
for data discrepancies.  The GIS road center line layer is now automatically updated 
nightly to support operations in law enforcement, Environmental Health, Construction 
Codes, and other departments. 
 

 Work on implementation of the Master Street Index application for dynamic (and 
searchable) publishing to the web is currently available on the GIS Department’s 
"Streets" web page. 

  
Health Department & Emergency Management (7) 

ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE DIVISION 
 Medicaid Cost Reimbursement: The Health Department received an initial settlement of 

$685,025 for its 2012 Medicaid Cost Report.  Cost reimbursement is a process where 
the Health Department is reimbursed a percentage of the cost of providing Medicaid 
services that are in excess of Medicaid revenues generated from medical billing. 
 

 Fluoride Debate: Health Department staff (Health Officer, Medical Director, EH Director 
and Public Information Officer) have been busy over the past few weeks preparing to 
defend the continued addition of fluoride to the Traverse City water supply.  A small but 
vocal group of individuals were attempting to convince the Traverse City Commission to 
stop adding fluoride to our community’s drinking water.   Community water supplies 
which are treated with fluoride have been found to significantly reduce cavities within the 
general population in those communities.  A majority of epidemiologic studies since the 
first use of fluoride in the Grand Rapids water supply in 1951 have clearly demonstrated 
the safety and effectiveness in community drinking water supplies.  Traverse City’s 
community water has been treated with fluoride since January 1, 1952.  The City 
Commission approved the continued fluoridation of the TC water supply by a 5 - 1 vote 
at its regular monthly meeting on Monday, June 16, 2014.  The Health Department 
hosted a pro-fluoride press conference, talked to media, and gave testimony at the City 
Commission meeting. 
 

 Hoarding Task Force: Administrative and Environmental Health Staff are attending the 
newly-formed Hoarding Task Force that meets along with other local agencies such as 
Metro Fire, Commission on Aging, Northern Lakes Community Mental Health and 
several other agencies.  The group is attempting to create a unified language and 
response network for those individuals with hoarding disorders. Metro Fire is heading up 
the task force in order to better protect the first responders who enter houses with 
hoarders and those who live in houses with excessive clutter. 

 
MEDICAL EXAMINER DIVISION 
 The Health Officer is continuing to work with Munson Medical Center staff on morgue 

expansion review and planning.  Munson plans to complete the expansion in FY 2015.  
A budget request will be brought on behalf of the Medical Examiner’s office for 
assistance with expansion costs for increased capacity.   
 



4 
 

 The Health Officer is working to review and establish protocols for all Medical Examiner 
staff.  In addition, she is developing a Medical Examiner pamphlet to be given to all 
families whose loved one is a Medical Examiner case so that they have a better 
understanding of the office and the process.  First responders, law enforcement, funeral 
homes and staff will distribute. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH & ANIMAL CONTROL DIVISION 
 Temporary Food Inspections: With the advent of summer, our food staff is busy on 

weekends and holidays conducting inspections of temporary food events.  We are 
currently working with National Cherry Festival officials and food vendors to make sure 
that the proposed food venues meet with minimum requirements of the Michigan Food 
Law.  A lot of work goes in to the license application process and pre-opening 
inspections of the proposed food venues before they are approved to operate. 
 

 Bat Exposures: Our Animal Control Officers continue to receive many calls regarding 
possible bat exposure calls from around our area.  So far this year, none of the bats 
which have been sent to the Michigan Department of Community Health (MDCH) Lab 
have tested positive for rabies.  Bats can be carriers of the rabies virus, which is a viral 
disease of mammals (including humans), that attacks the central nervous system and is 
almost always fatal if untreated.  According to the MDCH, bats are the mammal most 
often found to be infected with rabies. 
 

 Tom Buss, Environmental Health Director, answered a call from the Grand Traverse 
Metro Fire Department at approximately 11:45pm on Saturday night, June 14th.  He was 
informed that there had been a pressure surge in the water line serving the Health 
Services building which resulted in a release of water from a pressure relief valve in the 
basement of the building.  When he arrived, Fire personnel had shut down the fire 
protection system and locked out the air compressor to prevent the discharge of water 
from the pressure relief valve, which had already soaked some records stored nearby.  
Fire Officials informed him that he would need to stay until Brigade Fire Protection (in 
Grand Rapids) came and reactived the fire suppression system, which happened around 
5:00am.  A big THANK YOU to Tom for his exemplary actions in this situation. 
 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT & PREPAREDNESS DIVISION 
 Emergency Management: Preparing for Cherry Festival incident command center 

activities.   This year, due to the expected extra attendance because of the Blue Angel’s 
performances, the command post will be manned at all times, and the emergency 
operations center for the county will be on alert status.  The team is creating an incident 
action plan for the Cherry Festival representing all agencies who are involved in 
preparation and response. 
 

 Emergency Preparedness: The Crisis Emergency Response Communication plan was 
updated and approved by the Health Officer.  All contact lists were updated as well.   

 
COMMUNITY HEALTH DIVISION 
 WIC: On an average day, WIC participants spend $4,000 on WIC benefits in GTC 

stores.  Maintained enrollment above 2,500 participants for the last three months, which 
is the highest participant enrollment in the last three years. 

 
o Starting Project Fresh program this month. Project Fresh is a partnership between 

WIC and MSU-Extension which provides nutrition education and $20 worth of 



5 
 

coupons for WIC families to use at the farmer’s market for local produce.  To 
improve access to fresh fruits and vegetables for our families, WIC has also just 
increased the allotted amount of money for fruits and vegetables for children by 
$2/month, taking the total from $6 to $8 per child per month.  Grand Traverse 
County will be issuing over $6,000 for participants this season. 

 
 Hearing & Vision: 

o Fall registration dates for middle and high school have been set.  Due to 
overlapping schools/dates, we are unable to serve all 7th and 9th grade students 
prior to the start of the school year as we have in the past.  The student volume at 
these schools requires the use of all 3 technicians for screening.  With no other 
trained staff available for a second site, some middle and high school screenings 
will have to take place during the school year, presenting a challenge to both the 
Health Dept. and the schools.   

 
 Blood Lead:  Prosperity Region 2 Childhood Lead Poison Prevention Program (CLPPP) 

cost sharing grant update: 
 
o Lead prevention information is being provided in the baby tent at the Cherry Festival 

and outreach for the Kids Day at the Grand Traverse Fair in August.  Parents who 
have received the information have stated they will make sure to have their children 
checked for lead though their medical provider. 

 
Human Resources (5)  

 General fund positions approved by Board of Commissioners: 

 Accounting Technician – Treasurer’s Office .5 FTE 

 Community Corrections Officer 1 FTE 

 Office Specialist – County Clerk’s Office 1 FTE 

 (2) Road Patrol Deputy – GTSO 1 FTE 

 Office Specialist – District Court 1 FTE 

 Office Specialist – MSU Extension 1 FTE 
 

 Relay for Life was held on June 7th and 8th at the Civic Center and was attended well 
during most of the 24 hour walk from the County Employees team. Final total raised by 
the Grand Traverse County team was $6,070.90!! 
 

 The Wellness Team collaborated with Meijer Pharmacy to present a Lunch and Learn 
on June 11th. This is the first of a series of Lunch and Learns that will be presented by 
Meijer this summer. 

 
 County Elected Officials, Department Heads and Supervisors have been offered a 

Leadership Training Series in partnership with Northwestern Michigan College. It is a 3-
day training series to be held on the NMC Aero Park Campus in August.  Sign up 
deadline is August 1st.  

 
 2015 labor negotiations began on June 24th with the POAM Deputies bargaining unit. 

 
 

MSUE (7, 8) 
 New this summer at the 4-H Livestock Auction! 



6 
 

There has been a wonderful increase of 20% more youth in our 4-H Livestock programs 
marketing their animals this year at the Northwestern Michigan Fair.  Because of this 
great boom the 4-H Livestock Auction, planned for Thursday, August 7th, 2014 will 
have two auction rings.  The Haberlein Arena will host the large animal auction from 
9:00 a.m. –5:00 p.m. featuring Swine, Dairy Feeders, Junior Beef, Steer and a new Dairy 
Veal program due to local interest.  In the Rosa Arena, the auction will be from 12:00-4 
p.m. and will feature Turkey, Production Chickens, Meat Chickens, Ducks, Goats, 
Rabbits, and Lambs.  We hope you will join us for this exciting day in 4-H! 
 

 Grand Traverse County youth to travel to MSU’s 4-H Exploration Days 
This summer there will be over 2400 youth travelling to Michigan State University’s 
campus from around the state for the annual 4-H Exploration Days.  This three day, two 
night event allows 11-19 year olds to see what college life is like – live in the dorms, go 
to fun and exciting classes of choice and meet new friends.  This summer Grand 
Traverse County will be bringing a group of 91 youth and adults to campus.  We are the 
fifth largest delegation from around the state!  We look forward to this wonderful event 
and all the learning and life skills these 4-H youth will gain! 
 

 Jennifer Ritter, Injury Prevention Coordinator for Safe Kids North Shore, has been 
invited by Bonnie Raffaele, mother of Kelsey Dawn Raffaele, to sit on the state’s Safe 
Teen Driving Coalition.  Kelsey Raffaele was tragically killed in car crash in 2010 and is 
known to the public as Kelsey from “Kelsey’s Law,” a law recently passed in Michigan 
preventing any driver with a Level 1 or Level 2 licenses from using a cell phone while 
driving.  Jennifer has been invited because of Safe Kids North Shore’s efforts in reducing 
distracted driving through their local programming.   

 
Parks and Recreation (7) 

 PRN Update:  A joint Grand Traverse Region Parks and Recreation Network-Northwest 
Michigan Council of Governments (NWMCOG) Regional Recreation Network Meeting 
was held at the Civic Center on Thursday, June 12.  Because the Grand Traverse 
Region Parks and Recreation Network is setting an example of strength in community-
building and presence through its collaborations, the NWMCOG, which has been looking 
at forming a Northwest Michigan recreation network, wanted to join forces with the PRN 
to hold this joint recreation network meeting.  During the meeting, there were 
discussions about the Regional Prosperity Plan, recreation projects, and more.  The 
meeting was well attended by a diverse group of stakeholders, including Ann Conklin 
from the Michigan Recreation and Park Association. 

 
 Recreation Program/Facility Survey:  The final report featuring results of the County 

Parks and Recreation/TCAPS recreation program/facility survey has been produced by 
Woods Consulting.  A copy of the report will soon be posted on line on the Parks and 
Recreation web page and is available by contacting the Parks and Recreation 
Department.  One of the most notable outcomes is the high demand for adult 
recreational programming and opportunities. 

 
 Carter’s Kids and Kids Kove:  This project is on hold. 
 
 E-cigarettes at the Civic Center:  During its regular June 2014 meeting, the Parks and 

Recreation Commission voted 5 to 4 not to ban e-cigarettes from Civic Center property.  
The Commission will continue to look at this issue and may suggest some alternatives in 
the future. 



7 
 

 Easling Pool Fees:  A meeting of the Parks and Recreation Commission Civic Center 
Grounds Fees Ad Hoc Committee will take place on Wednesday, July 9, 2014 at 11:30 
a.m. in the Civic Center Conference Room to discuss the current and potential new 
Easling Pool Fees. 

 
 July is Parks and Recreation Month:  The Parks and Recreation Commission voted to 

adopt Resolution 02-2014 and declare and recognize July 2014 as Park and Recreation 
Month in the County of Grand Traverse, Michigan.  July also is Park and Recreation 
Month nationally.  The Michigan Recreation and Park Association offers a free on-line 
toolkit for parks departments to promote their parks and outdoor activity.  Grand 
Traverse County Parks and Recreation Department will use the toolkit to promote the 
county’s parks, places, and spaces for outdoor activities and family fun throughout July. 

 
Prosecuting Attorney Activity for May (7) 

 
 PROSECUTION 

 Authorized 149 misdemeanor warrants 

 Authorized 50 felony warrants 

 Authorized 20 juvenile warrants 

 Initiated 16 neglect/abuse cases (Our office has 54 open neglect/abuse cases 
involving 88 children) 

 Reviewed 22  referrals from the office of child support 

 Handled the following matters in Family Court: 

 6 paternity cases 

 13 child support cases 

 Obtained 6 judgments of child support 

 12 mentally ill commitment hearing 
 
 CIVIL COUNSEL –  

Contracts - Reviewed contracts for Jail Administration, Central Dispatch, Parks and 
Recreation, and Administration. 
 

FOIA Coordination:  Reviewed eight FOIA requests, six for Central Dispatch and two for 
the Health Department. 

 
Opinions and Questions:  Answered questions/prepared memos for the Board of 
Commissioners and various departments including Sheriff, Health Department, 
Commission on Aging, Jail Administration, and Treasurer. 
 

Litigation:  We represent the County in civil actions filed in the Grand Traverse County 
District and Circuit Courts as well as the Federal District Courts. For the month of May, 
we represent the County in the following cases: 
 

 Grand Traverse County v. Joseph J. King et al. On May 7th, we filed with the Circuit 
Court a complaint seeking reimbursement from 12 current and former inmates 
housed in the County Jail. Under the Prisoner Reimbursement to the County Act, 
MCL 801.81 et. seq., a County is permitted to file a lawsuit in Circuit Court seeking 
reimbursement from inmates, who are obligated to pay housing, medical and other 
expenses during incarceration. In total, we are seeking $25,505.21 in 



8 
 

reimbursement. In the future, we will plan on filing a lawsuit a month seeking inmate 
reimbursement.  

 
Miscellaneous: 

 Worked with the Facilities Management Department in renegotiating an easement for 
use of the First Baptist Church Parking Lot.   

 Provided information to the Parks and Recreation Department regarding a proposal 
to develop an e-cigarette ban at the Civic Center. 

 Working with County staff and Garfield Township officials in developing a strategy to 
defend a tax appeal involving Grand Traverse Mall. 

 Prosecuting Attorney Bob Cooney conducted OMA training for local elected and appointed 
board and commission members. 

 
Resource Recovery (8)  

 Household Hazardous Waste Collections: The second Household Hazardous Waste 
Collection Event of 2014 was held on May 29th.  A total of 226 residents and businesses 
brought over 30,000 pounds of hazardous material to the event for safe and responsible 
recycling or disposal. The next collection event will take place on Thursday, August 14th, 
and Resource Recovery staff will be taking appointments on the RecycleSmart Hotline (231-
941-5555) or online at RecycleSmart.info beginning on July 29th. 

 
 2014 RecycleSmart Kids - Garage Sale:  Staff are taking booth registrations for the 2014 

RecycleSmart Kids - Garage Sale event on Saturday, August 23, 2014. The event is for 
(supervised) kids ages 6-12 to learn the value of reuse and recycling – as well as to gain 
some savvy business sense – by selling their unused toys, games, books, movies and etc. to 
other kid or parent shoppers. The event will be held at the Grand Traverse County Civic 
Center – Howe Arena from 9:00am to noon, and the cost to reserve a booth is $2.00.  
Goodwill will participate in the event and will be available to receive any donations of unsold 
items.  Admission to buyers (both kids and parents/guardians) is FREE. 

 
Veterans Affairs (7) 

 VA Releases Annual Expenditures:  The VA has released their annual Geographic 
Distribution of Expenditures for 2013.  These figures are the Governments report of 
Federal expenditures in the county for veteran's benefits. The VA expended through the 
payment of benefits to claimants $34.2 million in 2013. This is up almost 25% over 2012 
when the recovery totaled $27.3 million and is the largest one year increase we have 
ever seen. Payments to claimants have increased about 100% since 2008 when 
recoveries totaled $17.2 million. A full report and break down of recoveries will be 
forwarded to the Board of Commissioners in July. 
 

 VA Clinic Expansion:  No response yet regarding the Grand Traverse VA medical clinic 
expansion. The VA budgeted $7.4 million to make the move in 2012. Plans are to double 
in space, increase services and employees, and decrease waiting times; but to date no 
measurable steps have been taken to implement the approved move. We have received 
substandard answers from VA officials on the reason for their inability to get this project 
off the ground.  Congressman Benishek, (who serves on the House Veterans Affairs 
Committee), and Senator Stabenow’s offices are working to get the project moving or at 
a minimum get the VA to provide reasons for delay.  The county will continue to pressure 
the agency for good answers and appropriate action. 

http://www.co.grand-traverse.mi.us/departments/resource_recovery.htm


  
 

Grand Traverse County Road Commission 

1881 LaFranier Road, Traverse City MI  49696 

Phone - (231) 922-4848, Fax - (231) 929-1836, Email – gtcrc@gtcrc.org 

Facebook:  Grand Traverse County Road Commission 

 

TO: Chair – Resource Management and Administration Committee 

 

FROM: Jim Cook, Manager 

 

DATE: August 6, 2014 

 

SUBJECT: MONTHLY REPORT FOR THE AUGUST13, 2014 MEETING  

 AT 6:00 P.M. IN THE COMMISSION CHAMBERS  

 400 BOARDMAN AVENUE, TRAVERSE CITY 

 

cc:  RMA Distribution List  Board of County Road Commissioners 

  

 

A commissioner will be available to answer questions and provide current information on the 

following items: 

 

1.  Emergency Road Repairs - Currently between $300,000 and $400,000. 
Supply Road – Failed culvert was repaired the week of July 14 at an estimated cost of $85,000.  

 

McRae Hill Road – The southerly portion of McRae Hill Road was speed and weight restriction 

to avoid further damages.  Temporary repair work has been completed and a more permanent 

repair will be made in the next few weeks.  

 

Riley Road - Another culvert failed on July 30 with repair costs of $6,500. 

 

2.  Project Updates 
Chip Sealing is complete with fog sealing to follow over the next week depending on weather. 

a.  South Long Lake Road from US-31 to Mud Lake Road is ready for fog seal. 

b.  West Silver Lake Road from Zimmerman Road to US-31/Grawn is underway.   

c.  County Line Road from Traverse Road east to M-37. 

d.  Karlin Road from County Line road north to Karlin or just short of Nessen Road. 

e.  Hobbs Highway from Supply Road south to Garfield Road. 

 

Township Projects 

a. Mayfield - Bancroft Road. A triple seal project was requested, but Mayfield Township rejected the 

corresponding agreement to provide long-term maintenance.  The maintenance agreement was 

offered because a triple-sealed road does not meet our standards for road construction.  

b. Forest Lane – Garfield Township.  This special assessment district was accepted by the Board as a 

potential 2015 project. 

 

 

 

mailto:gtcrc@gtcrc.org


  
 

Millage Projects 

a. South Airport Road (Silver Lake Road to US-31) is completed with pavement markings 

forthcoming.  

 

b. Hoch Road (Keystone Road to Garfield Road) started on July 28 and was extended an additional 

week due to heavy frost heave damage as a result of clay in the subgrade for over 1000’. 

 

c. Zimmerman Road, North Long Lake to Silver Lake.  The Board agreed to delay this project to 

allow Garfield Township’s water main project to proceed ahead of or during the road project.  Our 

project will now begin after the start of the school year. 

 

d. Supply Road’s overlay and striping is tentatively scheduled for late August.  

 

State Projects 

a.  South Long Lake Road.  The contract was approved by the Board for slope flattening, culvert 

extension and guardrail work between Wintergreen Avenue and Gingerwood Drive.   This work 

will be done this year. 

 

3.  Schell Pit Logging/Trespass - Release documents were submitted and full payment has been 

received.  

 

4.  Cost-Share Policies & Procedures – The Board adopted a cost-share budget policy and procedures 

which states the Board will annually decide on budgeted amount to be allocated for cost-share match 

and special assessment district match funds.   The local match policy was clarified as well.  

 

4.  Approvals - The Board gave preliminary approval to the Hills of Huellmantel Condominium 

project and granted an easement for a landlocked parcel on North Keystone Road and a variance for 

an agricultural driveway on Shugart Road.  

 

5.  Public Hearings - Staff will conduct a public hearing on changes to our fee schedule, right-of-way 

standards and on the improvements to LaFranier Road. The dates have not been set.  

 

6.  Permanent Funding Solution – The Board adopted a resolution calling for a permanent funding 

solution for road funding from the Legislature.  A copy of the resolution was distributed to county, 

township and state officials. 

 

7.  Asset Management Plan for 2014 – The Board adopted a revised Asset Management Plan for 

2014.  This plan will be updated annually to reflect such things construction cost changes, changes in 

funding and updated PASER ratings. 

 

8.  Workers’ Compensation Award - We were recognized as a “loss prevention leader” by our 

insurance pool at their annual meeting.  Our experience modification factor was less than 1.0 meaning 

we had less claims and losses over the past three years than expected for the number of employees we 

have.  
























































































































	081214 Board minutes
	081214 REVISED PACKET MINUTES 082814
	081214 Board minutes
	Binder1
	Cindy letter
	081214 Completed packet r 081214
	081214 Completed packet
	081214 Board Agenda
	081214 Clerk's report
	081214 Clerk's Balance Sheet
	081214 PC meeting 071414
	071414 PC Minutes r
	brian kelley comments for minutes re pc master plan final

	081214 ZBA minutes from 072314
	081214 Henkel's report
	081214 Metro Fire Newsletter
	081214 Shooting range
	081214 Changes to oil and gas operations Timmons
	081214 Board 070114 Minutes
	081214 Clerk's Prepaid
	081214 Clerk's Current Bills
	081214 Sheriff's Report
	081214 Sheriff's July report
	081214 County report
	081214 Road Commission report
	081214 Partial Agreement on Lautner Road
	081214 Resolution Motorcycle Awareness Signs
	081214 Before Metro Fire Budget
	081214 Metro Fire Budget 2015
	081214 BSA Software
	081214 Hoxsie House Status
	081214 Resolution Two montly Board meetings
	081214 Rules of Procedure







